
 
 
VFRIFA Board of Directors – March 8, 2023                                                                                        Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Bland County 
Stephen Kelley         
Eric Workman, Secretary/Treasurer 

Craig County 
Jay Polen 
 
Giles County 
Chris McKlarney  
Paul Baker 
 
Montgomery County 
Mary Biggs, Chair 
Craig Meadows 
 
Pulaski County  
Laura Walters 
Jonathan Sweet 
 
Roanoke County 
Jason Peters 
Megan Baker 
 
City of Radford 
Richard Harshberger 
Kim Repass 
 
City of Roanoke 
William Bestpitch 
Marc Nelson 
 
Town of Dublin 
Debbie Lyons 
Tyler Kirkner 
 
Town of Pearisburg 
Kenneth Vittum, Vice-Chair 
Todd Meredith 
 
Town of Pulaski 
Greg East 
Darlene Burcham 

 

  

Virginia’s First Regional Industrial 

Facility Authority 
6580 Valley Center Drive, Suite 124 

Radford, VA 24141 
Phone (540) 639-9313 FAX (540) 831-6093 

 
VFRIFA Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda 
12 Noon, Wednesday  

March 8, 2023 
Location:  Pulaski County Innovation Center, New River 

Room 6580 Valley Center Drive, Fairlawn, VA 24141 
 
 

1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Public Comment 
4. Items of Consent 

a. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 
b. Quarterly Financial Report 

5. Executive Team Report 
a. Property Updates 
b. Project Speaker 
c. VBRSP Grant 

6. Action Items 
a. Project Speaker 
b. VBRSP Grant 

7. Closed Session - Executive Session pursuant to Sec. 
2.2-3711 (A) (5) (6) (7) of the Code of Virginia, 
relating to a discussion of an undisclosed prospective 
business or industry or the expansion of an existing 
business or industry and investment of public funds 
which if made public initially might adversely affect 
the Authority’s financial position. 

a. Project Goose 
8. Adjournment - Next Meeting: June 14th, 2023

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VFRIFA Board of Directors – March 8, 2023                                                                                         Page 2 of 2 

5. Executive Team Report 
A. Property Updates 

a. International Blvd Phase 2 has been completed and closed out. 
B. Project Speaker 

a. They want to adjust the previously approved contract from two years to three years. No penalty 
for the first eighteen months. The previous version had the penalty starting after twelve months. 
They also want to adjust the buffer around Lot K to acquire more land.  

C. VBRSP Grant 
a. Proposal from AECOM to use the 2021 VBRSP grant. This is $300,000 to be used specifically for 

Lot J. 
6. Action Items 

A. Project Speaker 
a. Vote to approve Project Speaker Contract. 

B. VBRSP Grant 
a. Vote to approve AECOM’s proposal for Lot J. 

7. Closed Session - Executive Session pursuant to Sec. 2.2-3711 (A) (5) (6) (7) of the Code of Virginia, relating 
to a discussion of an undisclosed prospective business or industry or the expansion of an existing business or 
industry and investment of public funds which if made public initially might adversely affect the Authority’s 
financial position. 

a. Project Goose 
 

Motion to Return to Open Session – A motion is needed to return to open session. 
 
Certification – A motion is needed to certify the following: The Virginia’s First Regional Industrial Facility 
Authority certifies compliance with 1950 Code of Virginia, Section 2.2-3712 (D) requirements that (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under this chapter and (ii) only such 
public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting. 

8. Adjournment - Next Meeting: June 14th, 2023 
 



Attachment 4.a 

VFRIFA Board Minutes, December 13, 2022 
Page 1 

Virginia’s First REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITY AUTHORITY 
Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2022 
Pulaski County Innovation Center, Fairlawn, VA 

 

1. Roll Call 
A meeting of the Virginia’s First Regional Industrial Facility Authority (VFRIFA) was held on 
Tuesday, December 13, 2022 at the Pulaski County Innovation Center. Ms. Biggs, Chair, called 
the VFRIFA meeting to order at 12:07 pm. 

A quorum was determined with seven of eleven member governments represented: Bland, Craig, 
Montgomery, and Pulaski Counties, the City of Roanoke, and the Towns of Dublin, Pearisburg, 
and Pulaski. No representatives from Giles and Roanoke Counties, the City of Radford were 
present. 

Each member introduced themselves and their locality to start the meeting. 

2. Approval of Agenda 
Ms. Biggs requested a motion for approval of the agenda. 

Motion: Mr. Workman moved the Board approve the agenda. Ms. Lyons seconded the motion. 

Action: The motion passed unanimously with all members present by a voice vote.  

3. Public Comment 
No public comment was made. 

4. Items of Consent 
a. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

b. Quarterly Financial Report 

Motion:  Ms. Walters moved the Board approve the items of consent. Mr. Workman seconded 
the motion. 

Action: The motion passed unanimously with all members present by a voice vote. 

5. Executive Team Report 
a. Property Updates 

• Commerce Park Sign – Mr. Solomon showed a picture of the new sign at the entrance 
of the Commerce Park. It is a 20 foot sign, and our current tenants are on it.  

• International Blvd – Mr. Solomon said Phase 2 of International Blvd has been 
completed. We will be putting out a RFP to begin Phase 3. 



Attachment 4.a 

VFRIFA Board Minutes, December 13, 2022 
Page 2 

b. Patton/Watsontown Trucking Updates 

• Terminal – Mr. Solomon spoke about Patton’s Terminal on Lot B. They have broken 
ground on the terminal and their 100,000sqft addition. 

• Stormwater Permit – The permit is in Virginia’s First name because we still own the 
land. 

c. Airport Masterplan Update 

• Aaron Brummitt, the NRV Airport Manager gave a presentation on the airport’s 20 
year master plan. Mr. Solomon brought up the potential of Pulaski County building a 
fire station at the airport. 

d. January Updates 

• Mr. Foxx said the new Statements of Economic Interest will be sent out in January. 
These need to be completed by both board members and their alternates from each 
locality. Ms. Biggs said these need to be turned in for the audit. Mr. Workman 
reminded everyone that each page must be signed. 

6. Action Items 
a. Project Speaker 

• Mr. Solomon presented a contact for Project Speaker to the board. This contact has a 
two options( 2 year or 3 year option). Mr. Solomon recommended to the Board that 
they choose the three year option stipulation with a $1,000 penalty beginning in the 
second year. Ms. Biggs requested a motion. 

 
Motion:  Mr. Workman moved the Board approve the three year contract with the $1,000 

penalty beginning in the second year. Ms. Walters seconded the motion. 
 
Action:      The motion passed unanimously with all members present by a roll call vote. 
 
 

b. 2023 Meeting Schedule 

• Mr Foxx suggested the following meeting dates for 2023: 
• March 8, 2023 
• June 14, 2023 
• September 13, 2023 
• December 12, 2023 

 



Attachment 4.a 

VFRIFA Board Minutes, December 13, 2022 
Page 3 

• Motion:  Mr. Workman moved the Board approve the 2023 meeting dates. Mr. Sweet 
seconded the motion. 

 
• Action:      The motion passed unanimously with all members present by a roll voice vote. 

 

c. Reappointing Officers 

• Mr. Solomon stated that according to the bylaws, the Board must appoint a Chairman, 
Vice-Chairman, and a Secretary/Treasurer. Mr. Solomon also said that in the past the 
Board also appoints two at-large seat to sit on the Executive Board. Ms. Biggs opened 
nominations 

• Nominations were as follows: 
• Chair – Ms. Biggs 
• Vice-Chair – Mr. Vittum 
• Sec/Tres – Mr. Workman 
• At-Large – Ms. Walters 
• At- Large – Mr. Nelson 

 
Motion:  Mr. Sweet moved the Board close nominations. Ms. Walters seconded the motion. 
 
Action:      The motion passed unanimously with all members present by a roll call vote. 

 

7. Closed Session - Executive Session pursuant to Sec. 2.2-3711 (A) (5) (6) (7) of the Code 
of Virginia, relating to a discussion of an undisclosed prospective business or industry 
or the expansion of an existing business or industry and investment of public funds 
which if made public initially might adversely affect the Authority’s financial position. 

• Project Goose 
• Project Flying Goose 
• Project Pencil 

 

a. Motion to Go Into Closed Session  

Motion: Ms. Lyons moved the Board go into closed session for the purposes of discussing 
business, under Code of VA, Sec. 2.2-3711 (A) (5) (6) (7). Ms. Walters seconded the 
motion. 

Action: The motion passed unanimously on a roll call vote with all members present voting in 
the affirmative.  



Attachment 4.a 

VFRIFA Board Minutes, December 13, 2022 
Page 4 

b. Out of Closed Session 

Motion: Mr. Vittum moved the Board return to open session. Ms. Walters seconded the 
motion. 

Action: The motion passed unanimously on a roll call vote with all members present voting in 
the affirmative. 

d. Certification of Closed Session: Roll Call Vote certifying compliance with 1950 
Code of Virginia, Section 2.2-3712 (D) requirements that (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under this chapter 
and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by 
which the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in 
the meeting. 

A motion is needed to certify the following: The Virginia’s First Regional Industrial Facility 
Authority certifies compliance with 1950 Code of Virginia, Section 2.2-3712 (D) requirements 
that (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under 
this chapter and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting. 

Motion: Ms. Walters moved the Board certify that to the best of each member's knowledge (i) 
only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements 
under this chapter and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 
motion by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or 
considered by the committee in the closed session. Mr. Workman seconded the 
motion. 

Action: The motion passed unanimously on a roll call vote with all members present voting in 
the affirmative.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment 4.a 

VFRIFA Board Minutes, December 13, 2022 
Page 5 

8. Adjournment - Next Meeting: March 8, 2023 

With no further business to discuss, Ms. Biggs adjourned the meeting at 12:50 pm. The next 
scheduled regular VFRIFA Board meeting is Wednesday, March 8, 2023 at noon. Tentative 
dates and locations for called special meetings will be monthly on the second Wednesday at 
noon. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

  

Approved by,  

   

Michael Solomon, Executive 
Director 

Mary Biggs, Chair Eric Workman, Secretary / 
Treasurer 

  



Attachment 4.a 

VFRIFA Board Minutes, December 13, 2022 
Page 6 

Virginia’s FIRST REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITY AUTHORITY 
Attendance 

 
December 13, 2022 

Pulaski County Innovation Center, Fairlawn, VA 
 

Jurisdiction Member Alternate 
 
Bland County  (x) Eric Workman () Mr. Rodney Ratliff 
 () Mr. Stephen Kelley 
 
Craig County (x) Jay Polen 
 
Giles County () Chris McKlarney 
 () Paul Baker 
 
Montgomery  () Craig Meadows () Brian Hamilton  
 (x) Mary Biggs ( ) Brenda Rigney 
 
Pulaski County (x) Jonathan Sweet () John Travis 
 (x) Laura Walters 
 
Roanoke County () Jason Peters () Martha Hooker 
 () Jill Loope 
 
City of Radford () Kim Repass  
 () Richard Harshberger 
 
City of Roanoke (x) Marc Nelson () Robert Jeffrey 
 () Stephanie Moon Reynolds 
 
Town of Dublin () Ty Kirkner 
 (x) Debbie Lyons (x) Edith Hampton 
 
Town of Pearisburg () Todd Meredith 
 (x) Ken Vittum 
 
Town of Pulaski () Greg East () 
 () Darlene Burcham 
 

Others Present: Aaron Brummitt, Mark Popovich, Megan Baker 
 
Staff Present: Michael Solomon, Drew Foxx 
 



VIRGINIA'S FIRST REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITY AUTHORITY
Quarter Ending December 31, 2022

     Ledger Balance Forward September 30, 2022 903,620.69
Dues/Shares/Rents Received 
Interest Earned 
Leases/Loan payments 190,321.25
Mebane Sale
RSF Tax/Surcharge Income
Loans/Grants/Performance Payments
Misc 
Total Receivables (less fees) 190,321.25 190,321.25

October 2022 Payables
Atlantic Union Credit Card 153.36
National Bank 5,847.40
Pulaski Co 11.00
VSBFA 3,760.21
Pulaski Co IDA 55,000.00
Onward NRV 4,000.00
November 2022 Payables
VSBFA 3,760.21
Atlantic Union Credit Card 3,253.08
Pulaski Co 11.00
Guynn & Waddell 507.50
December 2022 Payables
VSBFA 3,760.21
Guynn & Waddell 175.00
Atlantic Union Credit Card 1,792.88
Pulaski Co 11.00

Total Accounts Payable 82,042.85

(82,042.85)

     Ledger Balance December 31, 2022 1,011,899.09
Available Funds 
            Virginia's First Designated Balance -251,870.17

            Commerce Park Designated Balance 732,366.96

Total Available Funds 480,496.79

These financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and are intended for internal use only



VA First Commerce Park Total Funds

9/30/22 Designated Balance  $          (209,927.68) 1,113,548.37$      903,620.69$            

Quarterly Income
Dues/Shares

Loans
Leases

Misc - Grants/Easement Fees/PSA repayment/RSF income/Patton 4,255.00$            
Real Estate Tax/Water Surcharge RSF 185,436.25$         

Add'l Shares - W/S Expansion
an payments land sale - new Dublin Presbyterian church

mebane house sale
Ruebush Road  house sale 630.00$               

reserve transfer
Total  Income -$                        190,321.25$         190,321.25$            

Quarterly Expense
Admin Contracted

Admin Exp  $                    43.40 64.84$                 
Project Development

Website
Contractual Service  

Debt Service 60,847.40$          
Capital Outlay

Professional  $                  682.50 4,000.00$            
Site Marketing 5,124.08$            

Site Maintenance
Lot C 11,280.63$          

Revenue Refund
Misc/reserve used for debt service

Total Expense  $                  725.90 $81,316.95 $82,042.85
   

12/31/22 Designated Balance (210,653.58)$           1,222,552.67$      1,011,899.09$         
12/31/2022 ledger balance 1,011,899.09$         

-$                        
1,222,552.67$      Commerce Pk Qtr Balance

(210,653.58)$           1,222,552.67$      

These financial statements have not been prepared in accordance with General Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and are intended for internal use only



{00489047.DOCX  }  

 
Prepared by and return to: Mark C. Popovich (VSB #46414) 
    Guynn, Waddell, Carroll & Lockaby, PC 
    415 S. College Avenue 
    Salem, Virginia 24153 
 
Tax Map Reference No.:  047-048-0000-010A 
 
Assessment:   $125,200.00 
 
Consideration:   $62,600.00 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this ____ day of 
______________________, 2022, by and between VIRGINIA’S FIRST  
REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITY, Grantor, hereinafter referred to as Seller, 
whose address is 6580 Valley Center Drive, Suite 124, Radford, Virginia 24141 and GAIA 
ENERGY ENTERPRISES, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company, Grantee, 
hereinafter referred to as Buyer, whose address is 14600 Jovet Court, Centreville, Virginia 
20120. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Seller is the fee simple owner of the following described unimproved 
tract or parcel of land, lying and being situate in Pulaski County, Virginia (the “Property”), 
to-wit: 

All that certain lot or parcel of land, with any and all 
improvements thereon and privileges and appurtenances 
thereunto belonging, and lying in the Cloyd District, Pulaski 
County, Virginia containing approximately 6.262 acres, more 
or less, and designated as “Parcel A” on that certain plat of 
survey entitled “Minor Subdivision Plat, Virginia’s First 
Regional Industrial Facility Authority Property”, dated 
January 28, 2019, by Draper Aden Associates, as recorded in 
the Pulaski Circuit Court Clerk’s Office in Plat Book 192, Page 
10. 

WHEREAS, Seller agrees to sell and Buyer agrees to buy the above-described 
property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties in consideration of the premises and the 
mutual covenants contained herein, agree as follows: 

PURCHASE PRICE 

The purchase price of the Property is Sixty-Two Thousand Six Hundred Dollars 
($62,600.00), which shall be paid to Seller at settlement by wired funds. 

SETTLEMENT 

Settlement shall be made at the office of the Grantor in the jurisdiction wherein the 
property is located, on or about the 31st day of January, 2023 (“Settlement”), or as soon 
thereafter as title can be examined and papers prepared.   



 
 

{00489047.DOCX  }    

CONDITION OF PROPERTY 

Buyer has personally inspected the property and accepts the property “AS IS”. 

EXPENSES AND PRORATIONS 

Seller agrees to pay the grantor’s tax and expense of preparing the deed, certificates of 
non-foreign status and Form 1099-S.  Buyer agrees to pay the recordation tax applicable 
to grantees upon the recordation of a deed.  

TITLE 

The right of entry upon the Property and use thereof shall be given at Settlement, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the parties, with Grantee having full and unobstructed use 
of the Property.  If, within twelve (12) months of the date of Settlement (the “Initial 
Period”), Grantee commences construction on the Property, Grantor shall officially 
transfer ownership of the Property to Grantee by recording a Deed of Bargain and Sale 
(the “Deed”) in the Pulaski County Circuit Court Clerk’s Office which shall convey to 
Grantee good, marketable and insurable free simple title to the Property, subject only to 
such restrictions and easements as shall then be of record which do not affect the use of 
the Property or render the title unmarketable.  For purposes of this Contract, “commences 
construction” shall mean the breaking of ground in order to construct improvements to 
the propertya building.  If Grantee shall fail to commence construction within the Initial 
Period, the parties agree that Grantee shall have an additional twenty-fourlve (2412) 
months (the “Additional Period”) in which to commence construction, but that for each 
month the commencement of construction is delayed during Additional Period, Grantee 
shall pay the Grantor One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) per month.  Any such payments 
made will be credited to the Purchase Price and refunded to the Grantee so long as it 
commences construction within those Additional Period.  If Grantee shall fail to 
commence construction on the property, within Initial or Additional Period, this Contract 
shall become null and void and Grantor shall have the right to retain the purchase the 
property from Grantee at the price Grantee paid plus closing costs incurred, and any 
monthly payments received are without refund to Grantee.   

RISK OF LOSS 

All risk of loss or damage to the Property by fire, windstorm, casualty, or other cause, or 
taking by eminent domain is assumed by Seller until recordation of the Deed. In the event 
of substantial loss or damage to the Property before recordation of the Deed, Buyer shall 
have the option of either (1) terminating this Contract, or (2) affirming this Contract, in 
which event Seller shall assign to Buyer all of Seller’s rights under any applicable policy 
or policies of insurance and any condemnation awards and pay over to Buyer any sums 
received as a result of such loss or damage. 

TITLE INSURANCE NOTIFICATION 

The Buyer may wish, at Buyer’s cost, to purchase owner’s title insurance. Depending on 
the particular circumstances of the transaction, such insurance could include affirmative 
coverage against possible mechanics’ and materialmen’s liens for labor and materials 



 
 

{00489047.DOCX  }    

performed prior to closing and which, though not recorded at the time of recordation of 
the Buyer’s deed, could be subsequently recorded and would adversely affect Buyer’s title 
to the Property. The coverage afforded by such title insurance will be governed by the 
terms and conditions thereof, and the dollar amount of the cost of obtaining such title 
insurance coverage. 

 

ASSIGNABILITY 

This Contract may not be assigned by either Seller or Buyer without the written consent 
of the other. 

DEFAULT 

If either the Seller or Buyer defaults under this Contract, the defaulting party, in addition 
to all other remedies available at law and in equity, for any and all damages and expenses 
incurred by the non-defaulting party, including, without limitation, attorney’s fees and 
costs, if any. 

NOTICES 

Whenever notice is to be given pursuant to any of the provisions of this Contract, such 
notice shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the U.S. mails with postage 
prepaid, for delivery by certified mail, return receipt requested, or upon pick-up for 
commercial overnight delivery. The date of that notice shall be deemed to have been given 
shall be determined by the postmark if sent by U.S. mail and by the invoice showing the 
date and time of pick-up if sent by courier. 

RECORDATION OF CONTRACT 

This contract must be recorded in the general index of the Clerk’s Office of the Circuit 
Court of Pulaski County, Virginia in order to protect Buyer from claims of subsequent 
Buyers or of other persons obtaining an interest in this real estate, or from claims of 
judgment creditors, if any, of the Seller. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

The parties to this Contract agree that it shall be binding upon them, and their respective 
personal representatives, successors, and assigns; that its provisions shall be merged into 
the deed delivered at Settlement and shall not survive Settlement; that unless amended 
in writing by Seller and Buyer, this Contract contains the final agreement between the 
parties hereto, and that they shall not be bound by any terms, conditions, oral statements, 
warranties, or representations not herein contained; and that it shall be construed under 
the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

ACCEPTANCE 

This Contract when signed by Buyer shall be deemed an offer and shall remain in effect, 
unless withdrawn, until ______________________ A.M./P.M. on the 



 
 

{00489047.DOCX  }    

____________ day of ________________, 2022. If not accepted within that time 
by Seller by delivery of a signed copy of this Contract to Buyer or Buyer’s designated 
representative, it shall become null and void. For the purposes of this Contract, Contracts 
received by electronic or facsimile transmission shall be deemed to be an original. 

In accordance with the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (UETA) and the Electronic 
Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act, or E-Sign, and other applicable local or 
state legislation regarding Electronic Signatures and Transactions, the parties do hereby 
expressly authorize and agree to the use of electronic signatures as an additional method 
of signing and/or initialing this Agreement. The parties hereby agree that either party 
may sign electronically by utilizing a digital signature service. 

 

 

Seller accepts this Contract at ______________________ A.M./P.M. on the 
____________ day of ________________, 2022. 

 

[Signature Pages to Follow] 
  



 
 

{00489047.DOCX  }    

VIRGINIA’S FIRST REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITY AUTHORITY 

 

         
Michael Solomon, Executive Director 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA ) 
      ) 
CITY/COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 
 
On ________________, 2022, before me, the undersigned, a notary public in and for 
said state, personally appeared Michael Solomon, Executive Director on behalf of 
Virginia’s First Regional Industrial Facility Authority, personally known to me or proved 
to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individuals whose names are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that they executed the same 
in their capacity as property owner and property purchaser, respectively. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
Commission expires:  _______________ 
 
Registration No.:  __________________ 
  



 
 

{00489047.DOCX  }    

GAIA ENERGY ENTERPRISES, LLC 

 

         
Ralph Torrossian, CEO 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA ) 
      ) 
CITY/COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 
 
On ________________, 2022, before me, the undersigned, a notary public in and for 
said state, personally appeared Ralph Torrossian, CEO on behalf of Gaia Energy 
Enterprises, LLC, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the individuals whose names are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that they executed the same in their capacity as property owner and 
property purchaser, respectively. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
Commission expires:  _______________ 
 
Registration No.:  __________________ 

 
























	Foxx_Edit_Virginia's_Agenda_First_20230302
	VaFirst Minutes 20221213_Minutes
	1. Roll Call
	2. Approval of Agenda
	3. Public Comment
	4. Items of Consent
	a. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes
	b. Quarterly Financial Report

	5. Executive Team Report
	a. Property Updates
	b. Patton/Watsontown Trucking Updates
	c. Airport Masterplan Update
	d. January Updates

	6. Action Items
	a. Project Speaker
	b. 2023 Meeting Schedule
	c. Reappointing Officers

	7. Closed Session - Executive Session pursuant to Sec. 2.2-3711 (A) (5) (6) (7) of the Code of Virginia, relating to a discussion of an undisclosed prospective business or industry or the expansion of an existing business or industry and investment of...
	a. Motion to Go Into Closed Session
	b. Out of Closed Session
	d. Certification of Closed Session: Roll Call Vote certifying compliance with 1950 Code of Virginia, Section 2.2-3712 (D) requirements that (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under this chapter and (ii) o...

	8. Adjournment - Next Meeting: March 8, 2023

	Treasurers Report FY23 Second Quarter
	Purchase Agreement - Gaia Energy (00489047xA5C36)-editsDec6
	02-28-23 Pulaski EDD Commerce Park Contract
	02-28-23 Pulaski EDD Commerce 65% Design Proposal

